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Plot P14 is the first tall building within the masterplan. The 
design of the building is driven by its existing context and 
coherence with future masterplan plots. Subsequently, the 
massing as per the consented outline masterplan has been 
reduced in response to its surroundings and the long strategic 
view of St. Paul’s. P14 comprises of ground plus 6-22 storeys 
and will provide:

• 378 homes offering a mix of studio,1, 2 & 3 bed apartments
• 920 m2 of retail space located at the ground floor, activating 

the frontages, to create the vibrant streetscape. 
• New public realm and landscape in proximity of Royal 

Caroline Square.

Design Approach

Through view

Twinkle Park

Maximise the views 
to the river



Convoys Wharf - Plot P14

Recreation of 18C The Smithy in the scale model and the reference image Historic Map of the Dockyard

View towards Royal Caroline Square, align with East Gate

Patterned metal spandral to the tower and the podium, inspired by the Smithy 
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contractor, ‘Mr Guest’ under the direction of the Admiralty’s Civil 
Architect, George Ledwell Taylor (1788-1873). The methodology 
employed was extremely crude.

Repairs to the Double Dock dragged on into 1839, at which time work 
commenced on completely rebuilding the Great Dock entrance, again 
in stone. These repairs were still on going in 1841.

A lofty timber roof was built over the Head Dock (the southern part) 
of the Great Dock in the 1830s. It is visible in old photographs and 
sketches (it can be seen to the right in the 1833 sketch of the Dock 
gates, shown on page 33).

Double Dry Dock (Great Dock)

By 1833 the Dockyard had suffered such neglect that part of the 
Head Dock of the Double Dry Dock collapsed. The Double Dry Dock, 
though not its entrance, was still wholly made of timber at this time 
and map evidence indicates that it may not have been substantially 
reconstructed for over twenty five years before its collapse. From 
historic accounts the Dock gates were clearly also in poor condition.

The Double Dock was repaired again, in timber, though this time 
with a lime concrete backing. The works were carried out by a civilian 

2.8 By 1868
By 1868, the Dockyard was at its maximum extent geographically, but 
long past the peak of its importance. It was to close the following year.

2.8.1 Deptford Strand
By 1868 the area around the Dockyard had become densely urban. 
With the arrival of the railways, Deptford was absorbed into London 
and dense terrace housing replaced fields around the boundary wall. 
New riverside industry severed Deptford Strand from the river.

2.8.2 Royal Dockyard
Following the Napoleonic Wars, the Admiralty entered a period of 
financial re-trenchment and Deptford, as the smallest Royal Dockyard, 
was all but disused. By Admiralty order, from the 31st January 
1821 the Dockyard was to be maintained only as a depot for small 
maintenance work. However, the Dockyard does appear to have 
been utilised for experimental work as one of the first steamers built 
for the Royal Navy, the “Comet”, was launched here in 1822. From 
1832 to 1837 the Dockyard was also used for ship breaking, as many 
of the worn out warships constructed during the Napoleonic Wars 
were broken up. No new ships appear to have been completed and 
launched from the Dockyard during this period, and there was little 
investment in its infrastructure.

However, it is known that a single warship, a fourth rate of 50 guns, 
HMS Worcester, was kept “under construction” at this time to satisfy 
the Admiralty’s lease of the Evelyn land. She was not finally launched 
until 1843 by which date she had stood on her slipway for 21 years.

In the 1820s the northern part of the Dockyard was transferred to the 
Victualing Yard, which was still thriving and expanding.

The benign neglect of the Dockyard came to an end in the 1830s, 
when the Navy needed extra shipbuilding capacity for the rapid build-
up of a steam-powered fleet. Therefore in the 1840s shipbuilding 
returned with a flurry of investment: more land was taken in for timber 
storage, a boiler shop was built, and a great deal of rebuilding and 
remodelling was carried out. The Dockyard was effectively operated 
as a dual facility with Woolwich Dockyard, because fully laden ships 
could no longer navigate this far up the Thames. Therefore, ships 
launched at Deptford were fitted out at Woolwich or elsewhere.
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Changes and problems in the mid 18th century (c 1740–70): archaeological and historical evidence

Fig 68  The smithy, as

shown in the 1774 scale

model, looking ‘south-east’

(National Maritime

Museum, Greenwich,

L0459-013)

Fig 69  View of the walls of the smithy rebuilt in 1741 (B18), looking west

The most significant findings on the plot P14 site are the Smithy and the Officers’ Quarters. The 
use of patternated metal for the horizontal façade panels visually references the industrial quality of 
the forged metal that would have been historically forged at the Smithy. Its texture and patternation 
will add visual interest to the facade. The primary vertical facade elements are to be clad in terra-
cotta panels coherent with the materials and tones proposed for the adjacent plots.

Responding to Heritage



Convoys Wharf - Plot P14
Landscape & Public Realm
The public realm around P14 responds to the masterplan guidelines in terms of hierarchy 
and character of the principal routes and spaces. Activated and engaging street frontages are 
complimented by generous, fully accessible footway routes and significant streetscape greening.
The design embraces the concept of Healthy Streets, offering a safe, welcoming and comfortable 
environment, incorporating regular seating opportunities and incidental play to engage and delight.

Green streets created to the west of P14 will:
• Provide visual amenity, increase local bio-
diversity and improve microclimate & air quality

• Use raingardens to capture, slow and cleanse 
stormwater run-off

• Reference heritage through landscape features 
and materials

Slice diagram through raingardens between P08 & P14

Structural timbers traditionally 
associated with shipbuilding

View looking southwest towards P14 rainagrdensRaingarden (Sheffield)

Landscape Plan
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Eastgate - green streets connecting 
Deptford to the River, retail frontage, 
wide footways, planted raingardens, 
‘play-on-the-way’ features

Old Officer’s Row - connection to 
Watergate St, retail frontage, on-
street parking, tree planting

Pedestrian Link - Controlled vehicle 
access, townhouse frontage, private 
gardens

Northern Townhouses - private 
front gardens, generous planting 
zone between houses and play 
space

Podium Landscape - residential 
gardens at first floor with 0-4 year old 
play space
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